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Local Landmark Designation Report 

23 Porpoise Run 

Southern Shores, Dare County 

1. NAME OF PROPERTY 

Historic Name: Sokol 

Current Name: 23 Porpoise Run 

 

2. LOCATION 

23 Porpoise Run 

Southern Shores, North Carolina 

27949 

 

3. NAME AND ADDRESS OF CURRENT PROPERTY OWNERS 

Courtney W. Clements 

428 Roseneath Rd. 

Richmond, VA 

23221 

 

4. APPRAISED VALUE  

According to Dare County tax records, the appraised value of the property is $307,700, 

which includes the house and the 15000-Sqft parcel. The tax appraisal for the house alone 

is $51,400, and the land is appraised at $256,300. 

 

5. DATE OF CONSTRUCTION  

23 Porpoise Run was constructed in 1958. In April 2000, there was an addition added to 

the east side of the house that included a kitchen/laundry room and a side screen porch.  

 

6. HISTORICAL SIGNIFCANCE 

Areas of Significance     Architecturally Distinctive 

Period (s) of Significance    1958  
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7. PROPERTY INCLUDED IN THE DESIGNATION 

The structure that occupies 23 Porpoise Run. 

 

8. STATEMENT OF SIGNIFCANCE  

 

The 23 Porpoise house, constructed in 1958 in Southern Shores, is a prime example of 

the Flat Top inspiration that Frank Stick brought to Dare County in the late 1940s. After 

World War II, Frank Stick acquired an option on a twenty-eight-hundred-acre tract north 

of Kitty Hawk for thirty thousand dollars. In the process of Mr. Stick building is own 

home, he creates a new vernacular architectural form: the Flat Top. To help with the 

construction of his house he set up a factory in Kitty Hawk village for the manufacture of 

cement blocks that weighed a total of forty-two pounds each, made from local beach 

sand. 23 Porpoise Run was made from cinder blocks manufactured in eastern North 

Carolina after the use of beach gravel for manufacturing concrete was banned by the 

North Carolina Legislature in the mid-1950s. Today, the exterior of the house continues 

to follow the integrity of the Mr. Stick design elements including an extended overhang 

and a bright or whitewashed exterior. 

 

9. HISTORICAL BACKGROUND AND SIGNIFICANCE 

 

Frank Stick, an artist from Wilmington, Delaware created the first “Flat Top Cottages” on 

the Outer Banks. The Flat Top was adapted for its barrier island setting from the single-

story, flat-roofed block houses of Florida. To those design elements, Stick added an 

extended overhang and a bright, whitewashed exterior. These features alone deflect the 

sun and intense heat, which makes these homes a cool relief during the hot and humid 

summer months. The exposed soffits and storm shutters were painted in brilliant shades 

of crimson, jade, emerald, and sapphire, introducing color to an otherwise 

monochromatic outer Banks landscape. The Flat Top homes have plumping and drain 

lines that are buried in the sand that have been covered by concrete and sealed. 

Frank Stick’s Flat Top homes were second homes, which were designed so that middle-

income families could enjoy the same amenities as wealthier clients. As the real-estate 

market fluctuated, site plans for Southern Shores were made, discharged, adopted, and 

abandoned during the early years of the community. The Flat Top houses become the 

idiom around 1965 when they become the predominant local form.    

Around 25 Flat Top homes remain today. In 1958, 23 Porpoise Run was developed. The 

Flat Top roof design was inspired by preexisting properties by Mr. Stick. The property 

represents Mr. Stick’s original design, including the adopted over-hang and whitewashed 

exterior that Mr. Stick added to his previous Florida inspiration. In April 2000, the 

current owner of the home added an addition to the east side of the home. This addition 

included a kitchen/ laundry room and a screen porch, which also faces the east side. 
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Through this renovation, the exterior of the home was made to look like the preexisting 

structure, including an overhang and whitewashed exterior that still stands today.  
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Figure 1: Survey taken of 23 Porpoise after the owner added the 1999-2000 addition on the house. Addition 
included kitchen/laundry room, and a screen porch.  
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Figure 3: Front entry way 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Figure 2: Front entry way of 23 Porpoise Run. 
Southern Shores, North Carolina 
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Figure 4: West side of 23 Porpoise Run 

 
  

Figure 5: The back of the addition 

that was added in April 2000.  
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Figure 6: The screen porch that was 

added during the addition in April 

2000.  

  

Figure 7: The east side of 23 Porpoise 

Run 
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Figure 8: 23 Porpoise Run (Source: Dare 

County GIS) 
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Figure 4: Original building plan 

for Mr. & Mrs. Sokol in 1958.  
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Figure 5: Tax bill for 23 Porpoise Run 

 


